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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the )
Eastern District of New York

RYAN O'LEARY

y, Plaintiff(s)

'I’HE CITY OF NEW YORK and THE NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT
POLICE OFFICER RICHARD. ALTAMIRANO TAX REG. #939866, SERGEANT
JUDE NORBERG, SHIELD # 2019 , POLICE OFFICER KENNETH MARCHELLO
'SHIELD # 2461 , POLICE OFFICER ANTHONY GIORDANO, SHIELD # 30903,
POLICE OFFICER SCOTT LUTZ, SHIELD 08108, POLICE OFFICER BYRON
PRIESTER, SHIELD #05638, POLICE OFFICER WILLIAMSEL ABDULMUMIN, 'SHIELD # 31889,
. POLICE OFFICER MICHAEL MIRON, SHIELD #20971, AND OTHER UNIDENTIFIED :
NEW YORK CITY POLICE OFFICERS INDIVIDUALLY AND IN THEIR OFFICIAL CAPACITY i

PROPOSED AMENDED SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

i POLICE OFFICER RICHARD ALTAMIRANO, TAX REG. #939866
To: (Defendant’s name and address) * SERGEANT JUDE NORBERG, SHIELD # 2019

" POLICE OFFICER KENNETH MARCHELLO SHIELD # 2461
POLICE OFFICER ANTHONY GIORDANO, SHIELD # 30903, _
POLICE OFFICER SCOTT LUTZ, SHIELD 08108,
POLICE OFFICER BYRON PRIESTER, SHIELD #05638,
| POLICHOKFICER WIELIAMSEL ABDULMUMIN, SHIELD # 31889,
| POLICE OFFICER MICHAEL MIRON, SHIELD #20971,

Civil Action No. { L’ cvVv 5 B (Dq

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose namg and address are: EDWARD ZALOBA

118-21 QUEENS BOULEVARD STE 504
FOREST HILLS, NY 11375

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court. '

DOUGLAS C. PALMER
CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X
RYAN A. O’LEARY,
- Plaintiff, Civil Action No.:14 CV 5769
-against- SECOND AMENDED
COMPLAINT
THE CITY OF NEW YORK and THE NEW YORK CITY JURY TRIAL DEMAND

POLICE DEPARTMENT, POLICE OFFICER RICHARD

ALTAMIRANO, TAX REG. #939866, SERGEANT

JUDE NORBERG, SHIELD # 2019 , POLICE OFFICER

KENNETH MARCHELLO SHIELD # 2461 , POLICE OFFICER

ANTHONY GIORDANO, SHIELD # 30903,

POLICE OFFICER SCOTT LUTZ, SHIELD 08108, POLICE

OFFICER BYRON PRIESTER, SHIELD #05638, POLICE

OFFICER WILLIAMSEL ABDULMUMIN, SHIELD # 31889,

POLICE OFFICER MICHAEL MIRON, SHIELD #20971,

AND OTHER UNIDENTIFIED NEW YORK CITY POLICE

OFFICERS INDIVIDUALLY AND IN THEIR OFFICIAL CAPACITY
Defendants

X

Plaintiff by his attorney Edward Zaloba, Esq., alleges as follows for his Complaint:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This is a civil a\ction against the CITY OF NEW YORK, NEW YORK CITY POLICE
DEPARTMENT, and the named NEW YORK CITY POLICE OFFICERS, and other unidentified New
York City Police Officers, to redress the deprivation, under color of state law, of plaintiff’s
rights, secured by the civil rights act of 1871 42 USC §1983 and rights secured under the
common law and privileges and immunities under the United States and New York State
Constitutions. This action is grounded upon wrongful, unlawful, and improper acts including,

without limitation, excessive use of force, and violations of police and public duties and

obligations.
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JURISDICTION

2. This action is brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983, §1985(3), §1986, §1988 and
the First, Fourth, Fifth, Ninth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution
and pursuant to Article 1, §§1, 6, 8, 9, 11 and 12 of the Constitution of the State of New York.
Jurisdiction is founded upon 28 U.S.C. §1331 and §1343 and the previously mentioned
statutory and constitutional provisions. That jurisdiction is founded upon the existence of a

Federal question. Plaintiff further invokes the supplemental jurisdiction of this Court to hear

and decide claims arising under state law.

3. These matters in controversy, each exceed exclusive of interests and costs, the

sum or value of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND ($150,000.00) DOLLARS.
VENUE

4, Venue is properly laid in the Eastern District of New York under U,8.C.§1391(b)
in that this is the District in which the claim arose.

PARTIES

5. That the plaintiff, RYAN A. O’LEARY, resides in Queens, New York.

6. At all times hereinafter mentioned, the defendant CITY OF NEW YORK was and still is a
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New
York, and that at all times relevant defendants, CITY OF NEW YORK and its Police Department , Police
Officers Richard Altamirano, Sergeant Jude Norberg, Police Officer Kenneth Marchello, Police Officer
Anthony Giordano, Police Officer Scott Lutz, Police Officer Byron Priester, Police Officer Williamsel
Abdulmumin, Police Officer Michael Miron, and other unidentified New York City Police Officers were
acting for, upon and in furtherance of the business of their employer and within the scope of their
employment.

7. That at all times hereinafter mentioned, defendant(s) officers and other unidentified police
officers, were employed by the defendant, CITY OF NEW YORK, as members of its police department.

8. That at all times hereinafter mentioned, defendant NYC, its agents, servants and employees

operated, maintained and controlled the NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT (NYPD), including
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all the police officers thereof.

9. The NYPD, is a local governmental agency, duly formed and operating under and by virtue
of the Laws and Constitution of the State of New York and the commissioner of the NYPD is responsible
for the policies, practices and customs of the NYPD as well as the hiring, screening, training, supervising,

controlling and disciplining of its police officers and civilian employees and is the final decision maker for

that agency.

10.  This action arises under the United States Constitution, particularly under provisions of the
Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States, and under federal law,
particularly the Civil Rights Act, Title 42 of the United States Code, Section 1983 and 1985, as well as
pursuant to the common law of the State of New York and the New York State Constitution.

11.  Each and all of acts of the defendants alleged herein were done by the defendants, while
acting as state actors acting under the color of law and within the scope of their employment by defendant

THE CITY OF NEW YORK.

12.  Each and all of the acts of the defendants alleged herein were done by said defendants while
acting in furtherance of their employment by the defendant THE CITY OF NEW YORK.
13.  All defendant officers are being sued in both their individual and official capacities.

14. Each and all of acts of the defendants alleged herein were done by the defendants, acting as
state actors acting under the color of law.
| NOTICE OF CLAIM
15. That on or about March 7, 2014, a Notice of Claim, was served upon the Comptroller of the
CITY OF NEW YORK.

16. The 50H hearing was conducted on July 22, 2014.
17. That more than thirty days have elapsed since the Notice of Claim has been served upon the

defendants and the said defendants have neglected or refused to make any adjustment or payment thereof.

18. That this action is commenced within one year and ninety days after the causes of action

arose and other causes of action within three (3) years when said action arose.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
19. On December 24, 2013, at approximately 12:10 a.m. and thereafter, the plaintiff was
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tackled by defendant, a uniformed New York City police officer, at the intersection of 35" Avenue and Corbett

Road, County of Queens, NY.

20. The defendant, an officer in uniform, thereafter turned the plaintiff over and punched plaintiff in his
mouth a number of times.

21. Upon information and belief, the ‘defendant Police Officer Anthony Giordano tackled the
plaintiff and turned him over and punched him in the mouth.

22.  Upon information and belief, the defendant Police Officer Scott Lutz tackled the plaintiff and

turned him over and punched him in the mouth.

23.  Upon information and belief, the defendant Police Officer Byron Priester tackled the plaintiff

and turned him over and punched him in the mouth.

24.  Upon information and belief, the defendant Police Officer Williamsel Abdulmumin tackled the

plaintiff and turned him over and punched him in the mouth.

25. The plaintiff was seventeen at this time.

26. That the defendant who struck plaintiff was one of numerous defendant officers who initially
responded to the scene.

27. Upon information and belief, that all of the defendant officers except defendant Norberg and his
driver defendant Miron, were present when said assault and battery of plaintiff occurred.

28. At no time did the plaintiff strike or attempt to strike or assault anyone including any of the

defendant officers.

29. The plaintiff did suffer a concussion at the time he was struck.

30. Due to the defendant officers’ conduct, the plaintiff was caused to suffer significant dental trauma,
including but not limited to three teeth being knocked out and/or fractured, the loWer set teeth were loosened and
remained loosened, stitches to the mouth and injury above plaintiff’s mouth. Plaintiff has undergone oral surgery

and other dental procedures and will require more surgeries and dental care in the future. Two of the teeth were

front teeth.
31. The plaintiff was removed from the scene in an ambulance and taken to Flushing Hospital. .
32. The defendant’s use of force was neither reasonable nor justified under the circumstances.
33. The defendant’s use of force were excessive and without legal justification, without the authority of

law, and without reasonable necessity to use such force.
34. The plaintiff did not resist arrest nor was he charged with resisting arrest.

35. Those defendants at the scene failed to intervene to prevent violation of plaintiff’s civil rights from

occurring.
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36. The defendants herein conspired to conceal not only the assault and battery but also the identity of

the defendant officer who struck the plaintiff.
37. That the defendants Norberg, Altamirano, Marchello, et al., conspired and made both false reports

and statements to law enforcement, their superiors, investigators, and civilians concerning the plaintiff’s injury and

the facts surrounding such incident.
38. That upon information and belief, defendant Norberg caused a doctor at Flushing Hospital to make

false entries.
39. That upon information and belief, defendant Altamirano caused a doctor at Flushing Hospital to

make false entries.
40. That upon information and belief, defendant Marchello caused a doctor at Flushing Hospital to

make false entries
41. That upon information and belief, defendant Norberg and other defendants intentionally provided

the ambulance personnel with a false account of how plaintiff sustained said injuries.

42, That upon information and belief, defendant Marchello and other defendants intentionally provided

the ambulance personnel with a false account of how plaintiff sustained said injurics.

43. That upon information and belief, defendant Altamirano and other defendants intentionally provided

the ambulance personnel with a false account of how plaintiff sustained said injuries.

44. That all defendants were acting in concert to conceal both the assault and battery and the identity of

the defendant officer who struck plaintiff, as well as to deprive the plaintift of his civil rights.

45. The plaintiff suffered great pain and discomfort and continues to suffer pain and discomfort.

46. The plaintiff was arrested for criminal mischief etc and was granted an ACD pursuant to CPL
170.55.

47. This was plaintiff’s first encounter with the criminal justice system.

48. The full extent of injuries to plaintiff are unknown at this time..

49. As a result of the defendants’ conduct, the plaintiff was caused to suffer irreparable harm,

permanent physical injury, economic injury, and continuous violations of his civil rights and other injury.

AS AND FOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF
42 USC DEPRIVATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS 1983

50.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained

in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth

herein.
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51. The conduct and actions of Defendants Police Officers, and other unidentified New York

City police officers, under color of state law and acting without probable cause, justification, or otherwise

privileged, subjected plaintiff to conspiracy, acts, and omissions to act without due process of law and in

violation of 42 U.S.C. §1983 thereby depriving plaintiff of his rights, privileges and immunities secured by

the First, Fourth, Fifth, Ninth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, including,
without limitations, deprivation of the following constitutional rights, privileges and immunities:

(a) Plaintiff was deprived of his First Amendment right to speak freely and to petition

the government for redress of grievances;

(b)  Plaintiff was deprived of his Fourth Amendment constitutional right to be free from
unreasonable seizures of his person;

©) Plaintiff was deprived of his Fourth Amendment right to be free from the use of
excessive or unreasonable force;

(d) Plaintiff was deprived of his Fourteenth Amendment right to liberty, without due
process of law;,

(e) Plaintiff was deprived of his Fourteenth Amendment right to equal protection of law;
52. As a result of the defendants’ conduct, plaintiff RYAN O’LEARY, sustained emotional and

physical injury including mental suffering, humiliation, embarrassment, and was otherwise harmed,

damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF VIOLATION OF THE
PLAINTIFE’S RIGHTS PURSUANT TO42 U.S.C. §1983
AND THE USE OF EXCESSIVE AND UNREASONABLE FORCE

53. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth herein.

54. That the plaintiff’s rights have been violated under the Fourth and Eighth Amendment of the
United States Constitution made applicable to the states via the Fourteenth Amendment pursuant to 42
U.S.C. §1983, in that plaintiff was unlawfully subjected to excessive and unreasonable force by defendant,
a uniformed officer, or an unidentified uniformed police officer, who either intentionally, recklessly or

negligently assaulted and battered plaintiff.
55. That the said assault and battery of the plaintiff was effected by defendant or unidentified
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police officer without authority of law and without any reasonable necessity to use any force much less the
excessive force that they employed and the force employed was used without legal justification, without
plaintiff’s consent, with malice and with an intent to inflict pain and suffering.

56.  As a direct result of defendants’ and unidentified police officers’ actions, plaintiff was
deprived of rights, privileges and immunities under the Fourth Amendment of the United States
Constitution being more particularly plaintiff’s rights to be free from the use of excessive and unreasonable
force.

57.  That all the defendants and unidentified police officers who witnessed the use of excessive
force against the plaintiff and who had a reasonable opportunity to intervene and prevent him being injured
and who failed to do so are liable to the plaintiff via their failure to exercise their affirmative duty to
intervene.

58.  That by reason of the unlawful use of excessive and unreasonable force, the plaintiff was
harmed physically, requiring him to received medical attention and he was subjected to physical pain,
humiliation, embarrassment, anxiety, closed confinement, and that he will be subjected to continuing
physical harm, pain, future surgeries and expenses for dental care and will continue to incur expenses for

dental care, and that plaintiff was otherwise harmed.

AS AND FOR A THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
PURSUANT TO 42 U.S.C. §1985

CONSPIRACY

59.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

60. Each and everyone of the above captioned defendants, acting under color of law,
individually and collectively, by way of their actions, omissions and conduct as alleged and set forth in the
proceeding paragraphs, did expressly and impliedly conspire to deprive Plaintiff of his Fourth, Fifth and
Fourteenth Amendment rights, and jointly caused such deprivation of right; by acting in concert to
unlawfully conceal the identity of the assailant officer by lying and concealing evidence, thereby hindering
and obstructing the due course of justice, with the intent to deny plaintiff the equal protection of the laws.

61.  That all of said defendants acted in further concert, to withhold information impeded
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prosecution of suit, and act in other such ways as to conceal the Defendants’ unlawful acts and deprivation
of constitutional and statutory rights secured to Plaintiff.

62.  Each of the Defendants separately and in concert acted outside the scope of their jurisdiction
and without authorization of law, and each of the defendants separately and in concert acted willfully,
knowingly and purposefully with the specific intent to deny Plaintiff equal protection of the law and
obstruct justice in this matter.

63.  As aresult of said conspiracy by the Defendants , the Plaintiff has sustained emotional and

physical injuries, mental suffering, humiliation, economic harm, embarrassment and otherwise harmed, and
damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
VICARIOUS LIABILITY
DEFENDANTS AGREEMENT TO FALISFY FACTS - COYER UP
42 USC 1983

64.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

65.  Each and everyone of the captioned defendants, a group of police officers herein, have
agreed to knowingly falsified records and testify falsely in order to cover up truth of the unconstitutional
conduct and unlawful acts committed by a defendant herein or unidentified uniformed officer.

66.  All defendant officers engaging in their group falsification of facts are vicariously liable for
the underlying wrongful conduct.

67. As a result of said group falsification, cover up, the plaintiff has sustained emotional,
physical injuries, mental suffering, humiliation, economic harm, embarrassment and otherwise harmed, and

damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
LIABILITY OF DEFENDANT CITY
FOR CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATIONS MONELL (STATE & FEDERAL)

68.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
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in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

69. At all times materials to this complaint, the defendant CITY OF NEW YORK, acting
through its police department, the NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT, had in effect de facto
policies, practices, customs and usages that were a direct and proximate cause of the unconstitutional
conduct of the defendant police officers.

70.  The aforementioned customs policies, usages, practices, procedures and rules of the City of
New York and the New York City Police Department included but not limited to assault and battering
persons with justification thereto, and thereafter concealing same to superiors, LA.B. and CCRB .

71. The defendant City of New York, failed to effectively screen, hire, train, supervise and
discipline its police officers and employees, including the defendant police officers and unidentified officer
herein, for their ability to report assault and battery of a person by fellow officers, where there was no
justification thereof.

72.  The existence of such de facto policies and/or well-settled and widespread customs and
practices has been known to supervisory and police-making officers and officials of the Police Department
and the City of New York for a substantial period of time.

73.  Despite knowledge of such illegal de facto policies and practices, the supervisory and
police-making officers and officials of the Police Department and the City of New York have not taken
adequate steps to terminate these policies and practices, have not disciplined individuals who engage in
such practices, or otherwise properly trained police officers with regard to the constitutional and statutory
limits on the exercise of their authority, and have instead sanctioned and ratified these policies, customs
and practices through their deliberate indifference to or negligent disregard of the effect of said policies,
customs and practices upon the constitutional rights of persons in the City of New York.

74.  Defendant NYC as well as unidentified police officers who were supervisors and final
decision makers as a matter of policy and practice, have with deliberate indifference failed to properly train,
discipline, sanction and retrain police officers, despite their knowledge of the recurring problem of

violations of the Constitutional rights of citizens by seizing persons, assaulting persons by the use of
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excessive and unlawful force, and thereafter falsifying official records etc, and in so failing, the defendant
NYC has caused, encouraged, condoned and allowed the defendants in this case to engage in the
aforementioned unlawful conduct without fear of consequences for their illegal acts which did cause the
plaintiff to be subjected to deprivations of his civil rights.

75. That the defendant municipality, NYC, alerted to the existence of a significant number of
false arrests by its police officers, by repeated complaints, of false arrest, and the use of excessive and
unlawful force, exhibited deliberate indifference thereto in that it was obvious to NYC that there was a
need for more and/or improved supervision of police officers in order to protect against constitutional
violations and in spite or repeated complaints of civil rights violations, there have been no meaningful
attempts on the part of NYC to investigate or forestall further incidents.

76.  That the defendant municipality, NYC, has also been alerted by its employee officers to
cover up the use of excessive and unlawful force by its police officers, and that the culture of violence by
NYPD has been allowed to exist without repercussions to the officers who engage in such behavior. This
behavior was permitted to continue in the case at bar.

77. Moreover, the action of the individual defendants resulted from and were taken pursuant to a
de facto policy and/or well-settled and widespread custom and practice of the City of New York, which is
implemented by police officers of said City. Where the use of unlawful and excessive force is concealed by
a conscious effort by all officers to conspire and thus conceal such conduct. Where the upward mobility of
the officers within ranks is accomplished. This conduct is open and notorious and frequently used by
officers to conceal improper conduct by said officers. This is a well established practice and custom of the
defendant NYC police department which has been the subject of a voluminous number of civil rights
actions.

78.  The existence of such de facto policies and/or well-settled and widespread custom and
practices have been known to supervisory and police-making officers and officials of the Police
Department of the City of New York for a substantial period.

79. Each and every year, thousands of civil rights actions alleging false arrest and unlawful

imprisonment and the use of excessive and unlawful force by police officers are brought and “settled” by
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the defendant New York City. Each year, the defendant, New York City spends millions of dollars to
settle and/or satisfy said actions.  All of the following matters contained allegations of false arrest,
unlawful and excessive force and unlawful imprisonment by the defendant New York City police officers:
Corey Avent 04 CV 2451, Michel Smith 04 CV 1045, Reginald McMillian 04 CV 3990, Jimmy
Stetnnopoulos 01 CV 0771, Ally, Inshan, Tiwari, Ramdass 04 CV 5643, Loxie Shaw 01 CV 4260, Darius
Peterson 08 CV 4397, Christian Moran 05 CV 5281, Andre Bryan 07 CV 4939, John Gucu Roberts 06 C'V
2687, and Ramos, Escobar 08 CV 1456, Cabral Duarte06 CV 5523, Theodore Richardson 07 CV 3651.
These matters were settled by the Defendant NYC. A multitude of similar matters could be cited if
necessary. Of greatest concern, is the fact that the defendant NYC is in possession of all information
concerning thousands of similar matters settled. Furthermore, these facts alone substantiate the fact that
not only is the defendant New York City aware of said police practices and usages, but moreso, that
defendant NYC has failed to stop said practices and has condoned said practices and usages.

80.  Upon information and belief, and without limiting the foregoing, the City of New York has

specifically failed to terminate said practices in the following manner:

(a) Has failed to properly train, instruct, and discipline police officers with regard to the
duty to intervene and to report violations of civil rights;

(b) Has failed to properly train, instruct, and discipline police officers with regard to
falsifying police reports and providing misleading information to prosecutors.

(©) Has failed to properly train, instruct, and discipline police officers with the use of
excessive and unlawful force;

(d) Has failed to properly train, instruct, and discipline supervising officers with regard
to their review of charges and reports of matters involving injury to persons and of
use of force and excessive force thereon;

(e) Has failed to properly instruct, and discipline police officers with regard to perjuries
testimony and police reports;

® Has permitted police officers to maintain the “blue wall of silence” and to conceal
and fail to report the misconduct of other police officers;

(2) Has structured procedures and standards at the Civilian Complaint Review Board,
the Office of Chief of Department, and Internal Affairs in such a manner that an
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officer’s denial of the charges is ordinarily sufficient to remove the threat of any
discipline or restraint upon the officer’s conduct and to prevent any objective review
of the officer’s conduct.

(h)  Has failed to require police officers to accept independent and objective review of
civilian complaints and imposition of discipline.

(1) Has failed to properly structure the police department to review and discipline the
existence of unlawful conspiracy by defendant officers.

81.  Defendant City of New York is directly liable and responsible for the acts of defendants and
unidentified officers because it has repeatedly and knowingly failed to properly supervise, train and
discipline said officers and because it repeatedly and knowingly failed to enforce the rules and regulations
of the New York City Police Department and the laws of the State of New York and the United States.

82.  The knowing and repeated failure of the defendant City of New York to properly supervise,
train and discipline said officers actually caused the injuries to plaintiff alleged herein.

83.  Upon information and belief, defendant City of New York knew or should have known that
the acts alleged herein would deprive plaintiff of his rights without due process of law, in violation of the
First, Fourth, Fifth, Ninth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and Article 1,
§81, 6, 8, 9, 11 and 12 of the Constitution of the State of New York, including, without limitation, such
rights as plaintiff’s rights, right to be free from the use of excessive force, right to due process, and right to
equal protection of the laws.

84. The defendant City of New York is also directly liable and responsible for the acts of
defendants under the doctrine of respondeat superior.

85.  Asaresult of the foregoing conscious policies, practices, customs and/or usages, defendant
CITY OF NEW YORK has permitted and allowed the employment and retention of individuals as police
officers and employees whose individual circumstances place the public or segments thereof at substantial
risk of being the victims of unlawful and/or unreasonable behavior. Such polices, practices customs and/or
usages are a direct and proximate cause of the conduct alleged herein and otherwise a direct and proximate
cause of the injuries to the plaintiff herein.

86. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff sustained great emotional and physical injuries, was
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subject to great humiliation, and was otherwise harmed, damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF
NYS CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATIONS

87.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

88.  Defendants subjected plaintiff to the foregoing conspiracies, acts, and omissions to act
without due process of law, thereby depriving plaintiff of rights, privileges and immunities secured by
Article 1, §§1, 6, 8, 9, 11 and 12 of the New York State Constitution, including, without limitation, the
following deprivations of his rights, privileges and immunities:

(a) Plaintiff was deprived of his rights to speak freely and to petition the government for
redress of grievances, in violation of §§ 8 and 9 of the Constitution of the State of

New York;

(b) Plaintiff was deprived of his rights to be free from the use of excessive or
unreasonable force in the course of either a lawful or an unlawful seizure, in
violation of § 12 of the Constitution of the State of New York;

(c) Plaintiff was deprived of his rights to liberty, without due process of law, in violation
of §6 of the Constitution of the State of New York;

(d) Plaintiff was deprived equal protection of laws § 11 of the Constitution of the State
of New York;

89. As a result of the defendants’ conduct, RYAN O’LEARY, sustained great emotional and
physical injury including mental suffering, humiliation, embarrassment, and was otherwise harmed,
damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF,
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

90. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
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in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

91. By the actions described above, the defendants and other unidentified defendant officers,
each acting individually and in concert with each other, engaged in extreme and outrageous conduct,
conduct uiterly intolerable in a civilized community, which intentionally caused severe emotion distress to
plaintiff, RYAN O’LEARY. The acts and conduct of the defendants were the direct and proximate cause
of injury and damage to plaintiff and violated plaintiff’s statutory and common law rights as guaranteed
plaintiff by the laws and Constitution of the State of New York.

92. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff sustained great emotional injuries, was subject to great

humiliation, and was otherwise harmed, damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR A EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF
NEGLIGENCE

93.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained

in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth

herein.

94, Defendants, by their aforementioned acts, negligently failed to use due care in the

performance of their duties in that they, among other negligent acts:

(a) failed to perform their duties as reasonable and prudent officers where the
defendant(s) officers viciously assaulted and battered persons and other
defendant officers recklessly and negligently ignored same.

(b) failed to perform their duties as reasonable and prudent officers where given
the facts herein no officer intervened to stop either the initial unlawful use of
excessive force,

(©) hired and retained incompetent and unfit police officers whom they knew, or
should have known, possessed dangerous propensities as well as a
propensity to conspire against innocent persons where said officers would
conspire and falsely arrest persons in an effort to conceal their assaultive
conduct and their unlawful use of force, and excessive unreasonable use of

force;
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(d) failed to exercise care in instructing police officers, officials, supervisors, and
civilian employees as to their department, behavior, and conduct, including
(but not limited to) the obligation of police officers to intervene, as an
affirmative duly to protect citizens threatened with deprivation of
constitutional rights by other New York City police officers;

(e) failed to establish meaningful procedures for disciplining officers
and other personnel who have engaged in such acts of misconduct.

95.  Defendant officers acting jointly and severally, negligently caused extreme emotional
distress to plaintiff, RYAN O’LEARY. The acts and conduct of the defendants were reasonably
foreseeable, and were the direct and proximate cause of injury and damage to plaintiff and violated
plaintiff’s statutory and common law rights as guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the State of New
York.

96.  All of these acts were performed without any negligence on the part of the plaintiff and were
the proximate cause of injuries to him.

97. As aresult of the foregoing, plaintiff sustained great emotional and physical injuries.

AS AND FOR A NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF,
FAILURE TO INTERVENE

98.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

99.  Each and every individual defendant officer had an affirmative duty to intervene on

plaintiff’s behalf to prevent the violation of his constitutional rights.

100.  The individual defendant officers failed to intervene on plaintiff, RYAN O’LEARY’s
behalf to prevent the violation of his constitutional rights despite having a realistic opportunity to do so.

101.  As a result of the aforementioned conduct of the individual defendants and other
unidentified officers, plaintiff’s constitutional rights were violated and he was subjected to use of excessive

force and other violations of his constitutional rights.
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AS AND FOR A TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF
ASSAULT AND BATTERY

102.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained

in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth

herein.

103. By the actions described above, defendant, a uniformed police officer, or an unidentified
uniformed police officer while in the scope of employment, maliciously, willfully and intentionally
committed assault and battery upon the plaintiff with apparent ability and objective to cause imminent harm
and offense bodily harm and subjected plaintiff to physical injury and harm and embarrassment and
humiliation. The defendant officer, a\ uniformed officer, or other unidentified uniformed officer,
intentionally, willfully and maliciously battered plaintiff, when he, in a hostile and offensive manner struck
plaintiff without his consent and with the intentions of causing harmful and/or offensive bodily contact to
the plaintiff and caused such battery. The acts and conduct of the defendant or other unidentified
uniformed police bfﬁcer was the direct and proximate cause of injury and damage to plaintiff and violated
plaintiff's statutory and common law rights as guaranteed plaintiff by the laws and Constitution of the State

of New York.

104.  As aresult of the foregoing, plaintiff sustained great emotional injuries, was subject to great

humiliation, physically harmed and was otherwise harmed, damaged and injured.

AS AND FOR AN ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF,
CLAIM FOR RELIEF UNDER NY STATE LAW
NEGLIGENT HIRING AND RETENTION,

105.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained

in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
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herein.

106.  Upon information and belief, defendant City of New York failed to use reasonable care in
the hiring and retention of the aforesaid defendants who conducted and participated in the use of excessive

force and other violations of plaintiff’s civil rights.

107. Defendant City of New York knew, or should have known in the exercise of reasonable care,
the propensities of the defendant officers and other unidentified officers, to engage in the wrongful conduct
heretofore alleged in this Complaint.

AS AND FOR A TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF, CLAIM OR RELIEF UNDER NY STATE LAW
NEGLIGENT TRAINING AND SUPERVISION,

108.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

109.  Upon information and belief, defendant City of New York failed to use reasonable care in
the training and supervision of the aforesaid defendants who conducted and participated in the seizure, the

use of excessive force, conspiracy, and violations of plaintiff’s civil rights.

AS AND FOR A THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
RESPONDEAT SUPERIOR LIABILITY OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK
FOR STATE LAW VIOLATIONS

110.  Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
in the prior paragraphs with the same force and effect as is more fully and at length set forth set forth
herein.

111. The conduct of defendants Police Officers, and other unidentified police officers alleged
herein, occurred while they were on duty, in uniform, and in and during the course and scope of their duties
and functions as New York City Police officers, and while they were acting as agents, officers, servants and

employees of the defendant CITY OF NEW YORK. The acts and conduct of the defendants were the




Case 1:14-cv-05769-MKB-RML Document 15 Filed 12/22/15 Page 20 of 20 PagelD #: 111

direct and proximate cause of injury and damage to plaintiff RYAN O’LEARY, and violated plaintiff’s

statutory and common law rights as guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the State of New York

pursuant to the doctrine of respondeat superior.

112. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff was deprived of his constitutional rights, subjected to
the use of excessive force and sustained great emotional and physical injuries, were subject to great
humiliation, and were otherwise harmed, damaged and injured.

VICARIOUS LIABILITY

113. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in each preceding paragraph of

this complaint as if fully set forth herein.
114. The defendants, employees and members of the NYC police department, an agency of the

Defendant City of New York, subjected plaintiff to use of excessive force and other violations of plaintiff’s
civil rights; therefore under doctrine of vicarious liability, the defendant City of New York is libel for all
acts occurring after and during the battery and use of excessive force.

115. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff f sustained greal emotional and physical injuries, was
subject to great humiliation, and was otherwise harmed, damaged and injured.

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff demands judgment :

A. Compensatory damages in the amount of FIVE MILLION ($5,000,000) DOLLARS;
B. Punitive damages in the amount of FIVE MILLION ($5,000,000) DOLLARS;

C The convening and empanelling of a jury to consider the merits of the claims herein;

D Costs and interest and attorney’s fees;

E. Such other and further relief as this court may deem appropriate and equitable, including

injunctive and declaratory relief as may be required in the interests of justice.

Dated: Queens, New York Yours, etc.,

December 21, 2015 %ﬂ{/ /(/%,/L

EDWARD ZALOBA, Esq.

118-21 Queens Boulevard, Ste. 504
Forest Hills, New York 11375
(718) 261-3000




